

September 14, 2006

TO: Members of the Facility and Plan Review Subcommittee
Los Angeles County Solid Waste Management Committee/
Integrated Waste Management Task Force

FROM: Chuk Agu *CA*
Staff

**POTENTIAL REVISIONS TO CHAPTER 8 OF THE
LOS ANGELES COUNTY COUNTYWIDE SITING ELEMENT**

Attached is the second draft revisions to Chapter 8 (General Plan Consistency) of the Countywide Siting Element for your discussion at the September 21, 2006, Subcommittee meeting. Please note that the yellow highlighted text reflect the changes from the first draft revision discussed at the August 17, 2006, Subcommittee meeting.

Additionally, attached is a list of acronyms for background information only.

If you have any questions, please contact me at (626) 458-3556, Monday through Thursday, 7 a.m. to 5:30 p.m.

CA:ro

P:\Sec\Engineer\Chapter 8.doc

Attach.

CHAPTER 8 GENERAL PLAN CONSISTENCY

8.1 PURPOSE AND REQUIREMENTS

~~The California Integrated Waste Management Act of 1989, as amended (AB 939), requires the Countywide Siting Element (CSE) to identify the~~ The preceding Chapters have discussed and identified areas for the location of potential new solid waste disposal facilities, class III landfills, inert waste landfills, transformation facilities, conversion technology facilities, and biomass processing facilities, and potential expansions of existing ~~solid waste disposal facilities~~ that will be necessary to meet the disposal needs of Los Angeles County during ~~if it is determined that the existing solid waste disposal capacity within the County will be exhausted within~~ the 15-year planning period. The sites identified in the CSE may or may not be consistent with the General Plans of their respective local jurisdiction. The purpose of this chapter is to provide information on the consistency of the sites listed in Chapter 7 of this ~~document~~ CSE with the appropriate local jurisdiction's General Plan. ~~The areas identified may be potentially suitable for the development of new Class III landfills or expansions of existing Class III landfills.~~

A General Plan is required by State law to be adopted by all cities and counties ~~of the State~~ in order to regulate the use of land ~~development of property in their jurisdictions. Current State law gives local jurisdictions authority to regulate the use of land within their boundaries. Therefore, the~~ determination regarding a proposed project's authority to determine the consistency with their General Plan is made by ~~lies with the government of~~ the local jurisdiction in which the project is located.

General Plans typically consist of text and maps designating broad areas for such basic uses as residential, commercial, industrial, agricultural, etc.: ~~Each area of~~ The General Plan ~~is typically describes~~ ed by the purpose of each the area, the principal permitted uses, and the uses allowed by a land use permit.

The land use/conditional use permit ~~mechanism process~~ allows a local government to review and, if appropriate, place restrictions on an individual project to ensure that the project is suitable for the proposed land use and does not adversely affect neighboring land uses. This type of General Plan provision can also be used to require the modification of an existing use permit should an existing land use be modified. Therefore Thus, the siting ~~and protection of the areas identified for future use as a solid waste disposal~~ these facilities ~~is~~ are subject to the land use regulations (i.e., General Plan, Zoning, and ~~Land~~ Use ~~P~~ermits) of ~~the~~ local jurisdictions on which the CSE must rely to be implemented. It is during this land use permitting process that ~~the~~ local jurisdictions will make a determination regarding General Plan consistency for a site and/or area for which detailed descriptions have been provided.

However, the California Public Resources Code (PRC) ~~sets~~ forth a separate definition for General Plan consistency for the purpose of identifying areas in a siting element considered “reserved” or “tentatively reserved” for potential new facilities ~~solid waste disposal facility~~ and/or expansion of the existing ~~solid waste disposal~~ facilities. Section 41702 of the PRC specifies that “an area is consistent with the city or county general plan if all of the following requirements are met:”

“(a) The city or county adopted a general plan which complies with the requirements of Article 5 (commencing with Section 65300) of Chapter 3 of Division 1 of Title 7 of the Government Code.

(b) The area reserved for a new solid waste facility or the expansion of an existing solid waste facility is located in, or coextensive with, a land use area designated ~~ed~~ or authorized for solid waste facilities in the applicable city or county general plan.

(c) The land use authorized in the applicable city or county general plan adjacent to or near the area reserved for the establishment of new solid waste transformation or disposal of solid waste or expansion of existing facility is compatible with the establishment or expansion of the solid waste facility.”

Therefore, sites and/or areas identified in Chapter 7 of the CSE as potentially suitable for development of new and/or expansion of existing class III landfills, inert waste landfills, transformation facilities, conversion technology facilities and biomass processing facilities, ~~identified~~ are considered “reserved” if : (a) the local jurisdiction has made a specific determination that the proposed land use for solid waste disposal site is consistent with its General Plan, or (b) use of the area for solid waste disposal site is listed among potential uses for the area in the local jurisdiction’s General Plan. Otherwise, the identified sites and/or areas are considered “tentatively reserved” and not consistent with the local jurisdiction’s General Plan.

~~8.2 PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT OR EXPANSION OF TRANSFORMATION SITES~~

~~New transformation facilities have not been proposed recently mainly due to the uncertainties of utility deregulation, the current low prices for power, and substantial negative public perception to this technology. Therefore, new facilities are not envisioned in the immediate future and no areas have been “reserved” nor “tentatively reserved” for the purpose of waste transformation.~~

8.23 RESERVED ~~LANDFILL~~ SITES

8.2.1 Class III Landfills

There are no proposed new class III landfills in Los Angeles County. The sites listed below and as identified in Chapter 7 of the CSE as potential expansions of existing Class III landfills ~~or new Class III landfills, are located in the County unincorporated area. As discussed in the following paragraphs, these sites~~ are considered to be consistent with the County of Los Angeles or the host jurisdiction's General Plan, and, therefore, for the purpose of the CSE, they are considered "reserved," pursuant to Section 41702 of the PRC. A detailed discussion of these sites is provided in Chapter 7 of the CSE. Table 8-1 also provides a summary of the status of each site and/or area listed below.

~~Antelope Valley Landfill Expansion~~

~~As discussed in Section 7.5.2 of Chapter 7 of the CSE, the proposed facility has received its land use permit granted by the Los Angeles County Regional Planning Commission, Conditional Use Permit Nos. 85512-(5) and 93041-(5).~~

8.3.1.1 Antelope Valley Recycling and Disposal Facility Expansion

The proposed expansion of Antelope Valley Recycling and Disposal Facility, located in the City of Palmdale, is described in Section 7.5.3.1, Fact Sheet 7-1, and Figure 7-1 of Chapter 7.

The Antelope Valley Public Landfill Draft Environmental Impact Report (DEIR), SCH No. 1990010988, dated December 2005, stipulates that (1) the City of Palmdale General Plan land use designation for the landfill and ancillary property site is Public Facility Landfill (PF-Landfill), and the existing zoning designation is Public Facility (PF); and (2) the zoning designation for contiguous areas of the landfill are M-4 (Planned Industrial) and a Conditional Use Permit is required to operate a solid waste facility in this zone. Therefore, the proposed expansion is considered "reserved" for the purpose of the CSE.

A Special Permit (Case No. 902) issued by the County of Los Angeles Regional Planning Commission on July 16, 1953 and amended on November 18, 1954 for use of Landfill I site as a public dump did not specify a permit expiration date. The existing CUP for Landfill II (CUP Nos. 85512-(5) and 93041-(5), granted on 4/8/92 and 12/1/93, respectively, by Los Angeles County Regional Planning Commission) is conditioned to terminate upon completion of the approved fill design (as shown in Exhibit "A" of the CUP) for Landfill II.

Landfill I site was annexed into the City of Palmdale (Annexation No. 1963-3) in December 4, 1964 as part of the City's incorporation. Landfill II site was annexed into the City of Palmdale on November 21, 2003. Application for a land use permit for the expansion is under review by City of Palmdale.

8.3.1.2 Bradley Landfill and Recycling Center Expansion

The proposed expansion of Bradley Landfill and Recycling Center, located in the City of Los Angeles, is described in Section 7.5.2.2, Fact Sheet 7-2, and Figure 7-2 of Chapter 7. The proposed expansion area is entirely within the permitted disposal area of the existing permitted landfill property site boundaries.

The existing landfill property site is located in areas zoned M2-1, M2-1G, and M3-1G where M2 is light industrial and M3 is heavy industrial. The land uses of adjacent and contiguous parcels are shown in Figure 7-2 of Chapter 7. Pursuant to the City of Los Angeles Municipal Code, solid waste landfills are permitted by right within M3 zone, however, a variance is required in the M2 zone area to allow use and maintenance of solid waste landfill operations. The City of Los Angeles Department of City Planning, granted the Zone Variance (Case No. ZA 94-00792(ZV)) on March 18, 1996 for solid waste landfill operations to be allowed at Bradley Landfill in the area zoned M2. Therefore, the expansion area is considered "reserved" for the purpose of the CSE.

The Zone Variance was updated by Approval of Plans letter (Case No. ZA 94-00792(ZV)(PAD) issued by the City of Los Angeles, Office of Zoning Administration on June 2, 1998, and is valid until April 14, 2007. Application for a land use permit for the expansion has been filed which would allow landfill operation to continue through April 14, 2007.

8.3.1.3 Chiquita Canyon Landfill Expansion

The proposed expansion of Chiquita Canyon Landfill located in the unincorporated area in the northwestern Santa Clarita Valley, is described in Section 7.5.2.3, Fact Sheet 7-3, and Figure 7-3 of Chapter 7. The proposed expansion area is beyond the existing permitted disposal areas but within the existing permitted landfill property site boundaries.

The proposed expansion site is designated as "R, Non-Urban" in the Land Use Policy Map LU-1, dated November 1980, of the County of Los Angeles General Plan. Solid waste landfill is one of the land uses allowed in the areas designated as "R, Non-Urban."

The landfill is also located within the Santa Clarita Valley Area Plan of the Los Angeles County General Plan, and in the Castaic Area Community Standards District. The bulk of the existing landfill property site is zoned A-2-2 and A-2-5 (Heavy Agriculture -Two and Five Acre Minimum parcel sizes) and the balance of the property, primarily the easterly portion is zoned M-1.5 DP (Restricted Heavy Manufacturing-Development Program). The land uses of the adjacent and contiguous parcels are shown in Figure 7-3 of Chapter 7.

On May 9, 1997, the County of Los Angeles Regional Planning Commission granted CUP Number 89-081-(5) to Chiquita Canyon Landfill for the requested landfill operations on the existing landfill property site. The CUP findings indicated that since the requested uses may be sited within these zones with a CUP, the existing landfill site is consistent with the County of Los Angeles General Plan.

Therefore, the proposed expansion is consistent with the County General Plan and the expansion area is considered “reserved” for the purpose of the CSE.

The existing CUP (No. 89-081(5)) will terminate upon completion of the approved fill design, as shown on Exhibit “A” of the CUP, or on November 24, 2019, whichever occurs first. Application for a CUP for the expansion has been filed.

~~Elsmere Canyon Landfill~~

~~The proposed Elsmere Canyon Landfill site encompasses areas which are designated as “O, Open Space,” and “R, Non-Urban” in the Land Use Policy Map LU-1, dated November 1980, of the County of Los Angeles General Plan. Solid waste landfill is one of the land uses allowed in the areas designated as “R, Non-Urban” or “O, Open Space.”~~

8.3.1.4 Lancaster Landfill and Recycling Center Expansion

The proposed expansion of Lancaster Landfill and Recycling Center (LLRC) located in the northeastern portion of unincorporated Los Angeles County, is described in Section 7.5.2.4, Fact Sheet 7-4, and Figure 7-4 of Chapter 7.

The ~~proposed expansion~~ landfill property site and its environs are ~~is~~ designated as “R, Non-Urban” in the Land Use Policy Map LU-1, dated November 1980, of the County of Los Angeles General Plan. Solid waste landfill is one of the land uses in the areas designated as “R, Non-Urban.”

Also, the CUP granted by the County of Los Angeles Regional Planning Commission on May 13, 1998 (CUP (No. 93-070-(5)) indicates that the landfill property site and surrounding areas are designated “Non-urban” in the Antelope Valley General Plan. The Antelope Valley General Plan allows “Public and Semi-

public” uses typically located in non-urban environs, such as solid and liquid waste disposal sites. Additionally, the existing landfill property site and its environs are zoned D-2-1 (Desert-One Acre minimum lot size), a zone which permits a wide range of activities including, with certain restrictions, light industrial uses. Waste disposal facilities require a CUP to operate in this zone.

The proposed expansion will not affect the physical dimension of the landfill. Thus, the landfill would remain consistent with the County and Antelope Valley General Plan. Therefore, the landfill site is considered “reserved” for the purpose of the CSE.

The existing CUP (No. 93070-(5)) will terminate upon completion of the approved fill design, as shown on Exhibit “A” of the CUP, or on August 1, 2012, whichever occurs first. Application for a CUP for the expansion has been filed.

~~Puente Hills Landfill Expansion~~

~~The proposed expansion site encompasses areas which are designated as “O, Open Space,” and “P, Public/Semi-Public” in the Land Use Policy Map, LU-1, dated November 1980, of the County of Los Angeles General Plan. Solid waste landfill is one of the land uses allowed in the areas designated as “O, Open Space” or “P, Public/Semi Public.”~~

8.3.1.5 Savage Canyon Landfill

Classification of the proposed Savage Canyon project as an expansion is inconclusive at this time pending review of the Joint Technical Documents by the Local Enforcement Agency.

According to the most recent Resolution (No. 5942) approved by the Whittier City Council (on August 22, 1989), the landfill site is situated in a HR (Hillside Residential) zone. The City’s General Plan designates the area as “Hillside and Park” and the land use in the surrounding area consists of oil production and hillside. Moreover, the ordinance exempts City property from compliance with conditional use requirements. The proposed project will not extend beyond the existing permitted property site boundary. Therefore, the proposed project area is consistent with the City of Whittier General Plan and the site is considered “reserved” for the purpose of the CSE

City Resolution (No. 5942) did not specify an expiration date for the land use authorization. However, the SWFP established a closure date of 2025. The proposed project will extend the closure date from the year 2025 to 2049.

8.3.1.6 Scholl Canyon Sanitary Landfill Expansion

The potential expansion of Scholl Canyon Sanitary Landfill, located in the City of Glendale, is described in Section 7.5.2.6, Fact Sheet 7-6, and Figure 7-6 of Chapter 7.

The JPA for operation of the landfill continues to recognize that the future option of the landfill include an expansion of (and/or on) the disposal area, but no specific expansion has been proposed by the City of Glendale at this time. However, any future expansion of the landfill is expected to lie within the existing permitted landfill disposal area and within the landfill site boundaries.

The City of Glendale granted a Use Variance (Case Number 6668-U) on November 27, 1978 for operation of Scholl Canyon Sanitary Landfill which is located in an area zoned R1 One-Family Zone. The land uses of the adjacent and contiguous parcels are shown in Figure 7-6 of Chapter 7. The Use Variance did not specify an expiration date but allows for expansion of the landfill. However, a land use application for an expansion has not yet been filed.

Since the potential expansion area is expected to lie within the existing permitted disposal area, the expansion is considered “reserved” for the purpose of the CSE.

8.3.1.7 ~~Sunshine Canyon Landfill Expansion (County unincorporated area)~~

~~As discussed in Chapter 7 of this document, the proposed expansion of this facility consists of an area which is partially located in the City of Los Angeles and partially in the County unincorporated area.~~

~~Conditional Use Permit No. 86-312 approved by the Los Angeles County Board of Supervisors on October 21, 1993 allows for initial expansion in the unincorporated areas. This permit also allows further expansion should the City of Los Angeles also approve the requested expansion into the area within the jurisdiction of the City of Los Angeles (see discussion in Section 8.4).~~

The proposed expansion of Sunshine Canyon Landfill for both the City and County of Los Angeles sides are described, detailed and shown in Section 7.5.2.7, Fact Sheet 7-7, and Figure 7-7 of Chapter 7. The land uses of the adjacent and contiguous parcels are also shown in Figure 7-7 of Chapter 7.

In November 1993, the County Board of Supervisors approved a Conditional Use and Oak Tree Permit (CUP No. 86-312-(5)) which (1) amended the County General Plan to exclude 542 acres portions of Sunshine Canyon Landfill from SEA 20, and (2) re-designated land uses within same areas as Hillside Management, Non-Urban Hillside and Residential (non-urban), and (3) authorized landfilling on the County-side.

The County General Plan recognizes that many non-residential uses may be appropriately located in non-urban hillside management area, including prospectively waste disposal facilities that require Canyon locations as a buffer to urban areas. The General Plan amendment, with the adopted mitigation measures and conditions, are consistent with the overall goals and policies of the County General Plan.

On December 8, 1999, the Los Angeles City Council amended zone change ordinance on an approximately 394 acres portion Sunshine Canyon Landfill (City-side) from A1-1-K-O to [T][Q]M3-1 within the Granada Hills-Knollwood Community Plan, thereby approving a General Plan Amendment to heavy industrial and zone change to M3, and authorizing landfill operations to re-start on the City-side of the landfill.

Since the area identified for the expansion is located within the existing permitted landfill site, which is located within an area authorized for landfilling in the applicable City and County General Plans, the expansion is consistent with the General Plan of the City and the County of Los Angeles. Therefore, the expansion areas in both the City and County-sides are considered “reserved” for the purposes of the CSE.

The existing CUP and Oak Tree Permit (No. 86-312(5)) for the County-side will terminate when the landfill reaches the final fill design and elevation for the county-side only, or for the combined City/County landfill, whichever is applicable. Additionally, the existing General Plan Amendment and Zone Change (Ordinance No. 172933) for the City-side will terminate upon reaching the final fill design and elevation.

8.3.2 Inert Waste Landfills

There are no proposed new inert waste landfills in Los Angeles County. The site listed below and identified in Chapter 7 of the CSE as a potential expansion of existing inert waste landfill is considered “reserved” pursuant to Section 41702 of the PRC. Table 8-2 provides a summary of the status of the site listed below.

8.3.2.1 Peck Road Gravel Pit Expansion

The proposed expansion of Peck Road Gravel Pit within the City of Irwindale is described in Section 7.6.2.1, Fact Sheet 7-8, and Figure 7-8 of Chapter 7.

The existing permitted landfill property site is zoned PD (Planned Development) in the City of Monrovia Zoning Map and as such, any use requires that a Conditional Use Permit be filed. On June 10, 1987, the City of Monrovia Planning Commission approved CUP Number 87-24 for operation of Peck Road Gravel Pit. The land uses of adjacent and contiguous parcels are shown in Figure 7-8 of Chapter 7.

The proposed expansion area is located outside the existing landfill property site and outside the City of Monrovia in an area within the City of Irwindale zoned as M-2 (Heavy Manufacturing). On September 14, 2000, the City of Irwindale City Council adopted Resolution Number 2000-42-1699 upholding its Planning Commission's Conditional Use Permit Number 95-4 allowing the expansion of Peck Road Gravel Pit into this area. Therefore, the expansion is consistent with the City of Irwindale's General Plan and the expansion area is considered "reserved" for the purpose of the CSE.

CUP No. 87-24 issued by City of Monrovia Planning Commission on June 10, 1987 for the current landfill will terminate when the site is ultimately restored to its original ground level. CUP No. 95-4 for the expansion was approved by the City of Irwindale on September 14, 2000, which allows mining and filling operations. Mining operations shall be completed when mining at the mining boundary line of Area 2 reaches 200 feet, or by December 2021, whichever occurs first. The CUP No. 95-4 terminates upon landfill reaching the street level or elevation designated for future site use.

8.3.3 Transformation Facilities

Currently, there is no proposed new or expansions of existing transformation (waste-to-energy) facility in Los Angeles County.

8.3.4 Conversion Technology Facilities

There are no proposed new and/or potential expansions of CT facilities in Los Angeles County. Locations and/or areas potentially suitable for locating new CT facilities within the County are identified in Tables 7-1 and 7-2, and Figures 7-10 and 7-11 of Chapter 7. However, there are no "reserved" CT facility sites identified in the CSE.

~~A detailed discussion of these sites is provided in Chapter 7 of the CSE. Tables 8-1 and 8-2 also provide an overview of the current status of each site listed below.~~

8.3.5 Biomass Processing Facilities

There are no proposed new (or expansion of existing) biomass facilities in Los Angeles County.

8.4 TENTATIVELY RESERVED ~~LANDFILL~~ SITES

Public Resources Code Section 41710(a) stipulates that “[a] County may tentatively reserve an area or areas for the location of a new solid waste transformation or disposal facility or the expansion of an existing transformation or disposal facility even though that reservation of the area or areas is not consistent with the applicable city or county general plan. A reserved area in a countywide siting element is tentative until it is made consistent with the applicable city or county general plan”.

The following ~~sites~~sites and/or areas are identified as "tentatively reserved" in this document~~, if~~. However, if the ~~areas~~sites and/or areas are not brought into consistency ~~of~~with the local jurisdictions' General Plan by the ~~first~~next five-year revision of the CoIWMP, or subsequent revisions, these sites and/or areas are required to be removed from the CSE. The local government having jurisdiction over the area may also remove "tentatively reserved" ~~areas~~sites and/or areas from the CSE by requesting the County to do so at the time of the next revision of the ~~document~~CSE.

A detailed discussion of these sites and/or areas is provided in Chapter 7 of the CSE. Tables 8-1 and 8-2 also provide an overview of the current status of each site listed below.

8.4.1 Class III Landfills

There are no proposed new Class III landfills in Los Angeles County. Additionally, none of the sites identified in Chapter 7 of the CSE for potential expansions of existing Class III landfills are considered “tentatively reserved,” pursuant to Section 41710 of the PRC.

8.4.2 Inert Waste Landfills

There are no proposed new (or expansion of existing) inert waste landfills in Los Angeles County that are considered “tentatively reserved” in the CSE.

8.4.3 Transformation Facilities

There are no proposed new (or expansions of existing) waste-to-energy facilities in Los Angeles County.

8.4.4 Conversion Technology Facilities

Locations and/or areas potentially suitable for locating new CT facilities within the County are identified in Tables 7-1 and 7-2, and Figures 7-10 and 7-11 of Chapter 7. These locations and/or areas are not yet designated or authorized for conversion technologies by their respective local land use authority. These locations and/or areas are considered “tentatively reserved” for the purposes of the CSE.

8.4.5 Biomass Processing Facilities

There are no existing or proposed new biomass facilities in Los Angeles County.

~~Three sites, including the Sunshine Canyon Landfill expansion portion within the City of Los Angeles, One of the sites may be potentially suitable as a new Class III landfill.~~

~~Potential Expansion Sites~~ ~~Potential New Sites~~

- ~~• Sunshine Canyon (City of Los Angeles portion, also see Section 8.5)~~
- ~~• Blind Canyon~~
- ~~• Scholl Canyon~~

~~A detailed discussion of these sites is provided in Chapter 7 of the CSE. Tables 8-1 and 8-2 also provide an overview of the current status of each site listed above.~~

2nd Draft

(2ND DRAFT REVISIONS ARE HIGHLIGHTED IN YELLOW)

[This Page Intentionally Left Blank]

2nd Draft

(2ND DRAFT REVISIONS ARE HIGHLIGHTED IN YELLOW)

Table 8-1

SUMMARY OF THE CURRENT STATUS OF POTENTIAL NEW CLASS III LANDFILLS

SITE	JURISDICTION	LAND-USE PERMIT STATUS	EIR STATUS	COMMENTS
Blind Canyon	Counties of Los Angeles and Ventura	None	See Note 1	See Chapter 7, Section 7.4 and Table 7-2.
Elsmere Canyon	County of Los Angeles	None	See Note 2	See Chapter 7, Section 7.4 and Table 7-3.

Note:

Note 1—A Program EIR was prepared to address environmental impacts for several potential sites including Blind Canyon (see Chapter 7, Section 7.4). However, additional environmental documents may be required for this site during the land use permitting process.

Note 2—The Omnibus Parks and Land Management Act of 1996, which was enacted in November 1996, prohibits the transfer of Angeles National Forest lands (by exchange or otherwise) for the use as a solid waste landfill. Previously, a draft EIR was prepared for a fill area which included Angeles National Forest area.

2nd Draft

(2ND DRAFT REVISIONS ARE HIGHLIGHTED IN YELLOW)

Table 8-1
SUMMARY OF THE CURRENT LAND USE PERMIT STATUS OF POTENTIAL EXPANSIONS
OF THE EXISTING CLASS III LANDFILLS

SITE	JURISDICTION	STATUS OF THE LAND USE PERMIT STATUS	STATUS OF THE EIR STATUS	GENERAL PLAN CONSISTENCY	COMMENTS
Antelope Valley Recycling and Disposal Facility	County of Los Angeles City of Palmdale	<p>A Special Permit (Case No. 902) issued by the County of Los Angeles Regional Planning Commission on July 16, 1953, and amended on November 18, 1954 for use of Landfill I as a public dump did not specify a permit expiration date.</p> <p>The existing CUP for Landfill II (CUP Nos. 85512-(5) and 93041-(5) granted on 4/8/92 and 12/1/93, respectively by County of Los Angeles Regional Planning Commission) will terminate upon completion of the approved fill design (as shown on Exhibit "A" of the CUP) for Landfill II.</p> <p>Application for the land use permit for the expansion is under review by City of Palmdale.</p>	<p>EIR was certified on 4/8/92</p> <p>The public review period for the draft EIR concluded on January 27, 2006. The Final EIR certification is currently under review by the City of Palmdale.</p>	Reserved	See Chapter 7, Section 7.5.2.1 and Table 7-3 and Figure 7-1.
Bradley Landfill and Recycling Center	City of Los Angeles	<p>The existing Zone Variance (Case No. ZA 94-00792 (ZV)) was updated by Approval of Plans letter (Case No. ZA 94-0792 (ZV) (PAD)) issued by the City of Los Angeles Office of Zoning Administration on June 2, 1998 and is valid until April 14, 2007.</p> <p>Application for a land use permit for the expansion has been filed which would allow landfill operation to continue through April 14, 2007.</p>	The public review period for the draft EIR concluded on April 6, 2006. The Final EIR is currently being prepared.	Reserved	See Chapter 7, Section 7.5.2.2, Table 7-3 and Figure 7-2.

2nd Draft

(2ND DRAFT REVISIONS ARE HIGHLIGHTED IN YELLOW)

Table 8-1
SUMMARY OF THE CURRENT LAND USE PERMIT STATUS OF POTENTIAL EXPANSIONS
OF THE EXISTING CLASS III LANDFILLS

SITE	JURISDICTION	STATUS OF THE LAND USE PERMIT STATUS	STATUS OF THE EIR STATUS	GENERAL PLAN CONSISTENCY	COMMENTS
Chiquita Canyon Landfill	County of Los Angeles	<u>The existing CUP (No. 89-081(5)) granted by the Los Angeles County Board of Supervisors on May 20, 1997 will terminate upon completion of the approved fill design, as shown on Exhibit "A" of the CUP, or on November 24, 2019, whichever occurs first.</u> Application for a CUP for the expansion has been filed, <u>2/17/89</u> .	EIR was certified by RPC on 9/11/96; the certification was appealed to the BoS and a decision is pending. <u>The draft EIR is currently being prepared.</u>	<u>Reserved</u>	See Chapter 7, Section 7.5.2.3 and Table 7-3 5 and Figure 7-3. "RPC" means the Los Angeles County Regional Planning Commission. "BoS" means the Los Angeles County Board of Supervisors.
Lancaster Landfill and Recycling Center	County of Los Angeles	<u>The existing CUP No. 93070-(5)- granted by the County of Los Angeles Regional Planning Commission on May 13, 1998 will terminate upon completion of the approved fill design, as shown on Exhibit "A" of the CUP, or on August 1, 2012, whichever occurs first.</u> Application for a CUP for the expansion has been filed, <u>8/18/93</u>	The draft EIR is expected to be released by fall 1997 <u>currently being prepared</u>	<u>Reserved</u>	See Chapter 7, Section 7.5.2.4 and Table 7-3 6 and Figure 7-4.
Puente Hills	County of Los Angeles	current CUP No. 92-250-(4) expires 11/1/2003; a new CUP is required	EIR was certified on 11/25/92; a new EIR may be required		See Chapter 7, Section 7.5.2 and Table 7-7.

2nd Draft

(2ND DRAFT REVISIONS ARE HIGHLIGHTED IN YELLOW)

Table 8-1
SUMMARY OF THE CURRENT LAND USE PERMIT STATUS OF POTENTIAL EXPANSIONS
OF THE EXISTING CLASS III LANDFILLS

SITE	JURISDICTION	STATUS OF THE LAND USE PERMIT STATUS	STATUS OF THE EIR STATUS	GENERAL PLAN CONSISTENCY	COMMENTS
<u>Savage Canyon Landfill¹</u>	<u>City of Whittier</u>	<p>The most recent Resolution (No. 5942) approved by the Whittier City Council (on August 22, 1989) did not specify an expiration date for the land use authorization. However, the SWFP established a closure date of 2025.</p> <p>The proposed project will extend the closure date from the year 2025 to 2049.</p>	The JTD for the proposed project was filed with the LEA and is under review.	<u>Reserved</u>	See Chapter 7, Section 7.5.2.5 Table 7-3 and Figure 7-5.
<u>Scholl Canyon Sanitary Landfill²</u>	City of Glendale	<p>pending technical studies</p> <p>The Use Variance (Case Number 6668-U) granted by the City of Glendale Planning Division on November 27, 1978 did not specify an expiration date.</p> <p>The Use Variance allows for expansion of the landfill, however, a land use application for an expansion has not yet been filed.</p>	pending technical studies No EIR has been prepared.	<u>Reserved</u>	See Chapter 7, Section 7.5.2.6 and Table 7-3 8 and Figure 7-6.

¹ Potential expansion inconclusive pending approval of the Joint Technical Document currently under review by the Local Enforcement Agency.

² City of Glendale has not yet determined the type and scope of the intended expansion. It is estimated that once the permitted capacity is exhausted, approximately 6 million tons of potentially available capacity will remain on the site.

2nd Draft

(2ND DRAFT REVISIONS ARE HIGHLIGHTED IN YELLOW)

Table 8-1
SUMMARY OF THE CURRENT LAND USE PERMIT STATUS OF POTENTIAL EXPANSIONS
OF THE EXISTING CLASS III LANDFILLS

SITE	JURISDICTION	STATUS OF THE LAND USE PERMIT STATUS	STATUS OF THE EIR STATUS	GENERAL PLAN CONSISTENCY	COMMENTS
Sunshine Canyon Landfill	County and City of Los Angeles	<p>The City of Los Angeles has granted BFI permission to file an application for a CUP. An application has been filed with the City for the proposed expansion and the draft EIR is currently under preparation.</p> <p>A CUP and Oak Tree Permit No. 86-312 (5) was granted in November 1993 (the "1993 County CUP") to allow BFI to extend landfilling into the County-side. The permit will terminate when the landfill reaches the final fill design and elevation for the county-side only, or for the combined City/County landfill, whichever is applicable.</p> <p>City of Los Angeles approved a General Plan Amendment and Zone Change (Ordinance No. 172933) on December 8, 1999 to resume landfilling (Phase I and II of Unit 2) on the City side. The permit will terminate upon reaching the final fill design and elevation.</p> <p>On June 7, 2006, the Los Angeles County Board of Supervisors (BOS) granted a replacement CUP replacing the 1993 County CUP subject to additional conditions. The final replacement CUP is being drafted for approval by the BOS.</p> <p>Operation of a joint City/County landfill will be subject to approval of the Joint Powers Agreement (JPA) and Revenue Sharing Agreement (RSA) currently being prepared jointly by the County and City.</p>	<p>The County Board of Supervisors granted CUP No. 86-312 on 10/21/93 for expansion in the County unincorporated area.</p> <p>The Final EIR (State Clearinghouse No. 89071210) for the 1993 CUP was certified by the BOS on February 19, 1991, and was recertified in November 30, 1993.</p> <p>In December 8, 1999, the City of Los Angeles certified a Final Subsequent EIR ("SEIR", (State Clearinghouse No. 92041053) in connection with its adoption of a Zone Change and General Plan Amendment that approved land filling on the City side.</p> <p>Subsequently, the County prepared an Addendum to the "FEIR" and "SEIR" in connection with the replacement CUP. The Addendum is pending certification by the BOS.</p>	Reserved	See Chapter 7, Section 7.5.2 7 and Table 7- 39 and Figure 7.7 .

2nd Draft

(2ND DRAFT REVISIONS ARE HIGHLIGHTED IN YELLOW)

Table 8-2
SUMMARY OF THE CURRENT LAND USE PERMIT STATUS OF POTENTIAL EXPANSIONS OF THE EXISTING INERT WASTE LANDFILLS

<u>SITE</u>	<u>JURISDICTION</u>	<u>STATUS OF THE LAND USE PERMIT</u>	<u>STATUS OF THE EIR FOR THE EXPANSION</u>	<u>GENERAL PLAN CONSISTENCY</u>	<u>COMMENTS</u>
Peck Road Gravel Pit	City of Monrovia (for existing landfill) City of Irwindale (for expansion area)	CUP No. 87-24 issued by City of Monrovia Planning Commission on June 10, 1987 for the current landfill will terminate when the site is ultimately restored to its original ground level. CUP No. 95-4 for the expansion was approved by the City of Irwindale on September 14, 2000, which allows for mining and filling operations. Mining operations shall be completed when mining at the mining boundary line of Area 2 reaches 200 feet, or by December 2021, whichever occurs first. The CUP terminates upon landfill reaching the street level or elevation designated for future site use.	The Final EIR for the expansion was certified by the Irwindale City Council by Resolution 2000-42-1699 on September 14, 2000.	Reserved	See Chapter 7, Section 7.6.2.1 Table 7-3 and Figure 7-8.

LIST OF ACRONYMS

A	Advisory Entity
AADT	Average Annual Daily Traffic
AB	Assembly Bill
AB 939	Assembly Bill 939, California Integrated Waste Management Act of 1989
ADC	Alternative Daily Cover
ADCMs	Alternative Daily Cover Materials
AQMD	Air Quality Management District
BACT	Best Available Control Technology
BFI, Inc.	Browning - Ferris Industries, Inc.
BHTGS	Battelle High Throughput Gasification System
BIT	Biosolids Injection Technology
BLM	Bureau of Land Management
CAA	Federal Clean Air Act
CARB	California Air Resources Board
CALTRANS	California Department of Transportation
CCC	California Coastal Commission
CCR	California Code of Regulations
C&D	Construction and Demolition Waste
CDFG	California Department of Fish and Game
CDHS	California Department of Health Services
CDOF	California Department of Finance
CDTSC	California Department of Toxic Substances Control
CEQA	California Environmental Quality Act
CERCLA	Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act
CEPA	Campo Environmental Protection Agency

LIST OF ACRONYMS

CFR	Code of Federal Regulations
CIEC	Cement Industry Environmental Consortium
CIWMA	California Integrated Waste Management Act of 1989
CIWMB	California Integrated Waste Management Board
COE	United States Army Corps of Engineers
COG	Council of Governments
CoIWMP	Countywide Integrated Waste Management Plan
CoSWMP	County Solid Waste Management Plan
CREF	Commerce Refuse-to-Energy Facility
CRWQCB	California Regional Water Quality Control Board
CSD	County Sanitation Districts of Los Angeles County
CSE	Countywide Siting Element
CSP	Countywide Summary Plan
CUP	Conditional Use Permit
CWA	Federal Clean Water Act
CWMB	California Waste Management Board (Replaced by the CIWMB)
DHS	Los Angeles County Department of Health Services (see LACoDHS)
DPW	Los Angeles County Department of Public Works (see LACoDWP)
ECDC	East Carbon Development Corporation
EIR	Environmental Impact Report
EIS	Environmental Impact Statement
EPA	United States Environmental Protection Agency
EPI	Energy Products of Idaho
EPRI	Electric Power Research Institute
FBC	Fluidized Bed Combustion

LIST OF ACRONYMS

FOC	Finding of Conformance
HCL	Hydrochloric Acid
HHW	Household Hazardous Waste
HHWE	Household Hazardous Waste Element
HPS	Hot Pneumatic Separator
L	Lead Entity
LACo	Los Angeles County
LACoDHS	Los Angeles County Department of Health Services
LACoDPW	Los Angeles County Department of Public Works
LACSD	County Sanitation Districts of Los Angeles County
LAER	Lowest Achievable Emission Rate
LEA	Local Enforcement Agency
LTF	Local Task Force
LUP	Land Use Permit
MACT	Maximum Achievable Control Technology
MRF	Materials Recovery Facility
MSW	Municipal Solid Waste
MSWLF	Municipal Solid Waste Landfill
MTCI	The Manufacturing and Technology Conversion International, Inc.,
MW	Megawatts
NAAQS	National Ambient Air Quality Standards
NDFE	Nondisposal Facility Element
NIOSH	National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System
NOP	Notice of Preparation
NPDES	National Pollution Discharge Elimination System

LIST OF ACRONYMS

NPS	National Park Service
NSPS	New Source Performance Standards
PARF	Plasma Application Research Facility
PI	Private Industry
PPM	Parts per Million
PRC	California Public Resources Code
PSD	Prevention of Significant Deterioration
PURPA	Public Utility Regulatory Act
RCBC	Rotary Cascading Bed Combustion
RCRA	Resource Conservation and Recovery Act
RDF	Refuse Derived Fuel
RWQCB	Regional Water Quality Control Board
S	Support Entity
SB	Senate Bill
SCAG	Southern California Association of Governments
SCAQMD	South Coast Air Quality Management District
SCE	Southern California Edison
SDOHS	State Department of Health Services
SERRF	Southeast Resource and Recovery Facility
SNCR	Selective Non-Catalytic Reduction
SIC	Standard Industrial Code
SRRE	Source Reduction and Recycling Element
SWANA	The Solid Waste Association of North America
SWF	Solid Waste Facility
SWFP	Solid Waste Facility Permit

LIST OF ACRONYMS

SWRCB	State Water Resources Control Board
T-BACT	Best Available Control Technology for Toxics
TPD	Tons Per Day
TF	Los Angeles County Solid Waste Management Committee/Integrated Waste Management Task Force
TPD	Tons per Day
TPS	Termiska Processor of Sweden
USEPA	United States Environmental Protection Agency
USGS	United States Geological Survey
WDRs	Waste Discharge Requirements
WTE	Waste-to-Energy (Transformation)
WTPD	Wet Tons Per Day